3:21: 57 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 14, 2013
3:21 p.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 3:21 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Al an Aust erman, Co-Chair
Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Mar k Neuman, Vice-Chair

M a Costello

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Li ndsey Hol nes

Scott Kawasaki, Alternate

Cat hy Munoz
St eve Thonpson
Tammi e W1 son

David Guttenberg

Representative Pete Higgins, Fairbanks; Thomas Studler,
Staff, Representative Hggins; Kris Curtis, Legislative
Auditor, Legislative Budget and Audit; D ane Burnham
Legi sl ative Auditor, Legislative Budget and Audit; Patrick
Pillai, Executive Director, Speci al Education Service
Agency; PJ Ford Slack, Principal, Sitka H gh School and
Chair, SESA;, MIlie Ryan, Executive D rector, REACH Dani el
Ceorge, Staff, Co-Chair Stoltze; Stacy Shuber, Director,
Governnent Affairs and Public Rel ations.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Craig Ward, Ketchikan; Jerem ah Pickett, Special Education
Services, Buckland ; GCeorgia Lansing, Delta/ Geely School
District, Delta Junction; Tanmmy Boutte, Special Education

House Fi nance Committee 1

03/14/13 3:21 P.M



Services, Salana; Mrilyn Rosene, Principal of Dillingham
El ementary; Esther Bennet, Adak; Eric Havelock, Milti-
Fam |y Underwiting Supervisor, AHFC

SUMVARY

HB 50 MULTI - UNI T HOUSI NG COMVERCI AL USE
CSHB 50 (FIN) was REPORTED out of conmmttee with
a "do pass” recommendation and with one
previ ously published zero fiscal note: FN1 (REV).

HB 87 EXTEND SPECI AL EDUCATI ON SERVI CE AGENCY

HB 87 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb87
HOUSE BI LL NO. 87

"An Act extending the special education service
agency; and providing for an effective date.™

3:22:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE H GA NS, FAIRBANKS, introduced the
| egi sl ati on. He explained that the Speci al Educati on
Service Agency (SESA) supported the education of children
with Low Incidence Disabilities (LID) in rural areas. He
recommended the extension of the program and the sunset
t hrough June 30, 2021.

3:24:16 PM

THOVAS STUDLER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE H GA NS was avail abl e
to answer questions about the bill.

3:24:58 PM

KRIS CURTIS, LEGQ SLATIVE AUD TOR, LEG SLATIVE BUDGET AND
AUDI T, apol ogi zed because she was sick and her voice was
suffering. She introduced her audit nanager to provide her
tal ki ng points.

3: 25: 38 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



DI ANE BURNHAM LEG SLATI VE AUDI TOR, LEG SLATIVE BUDGET AND
AUDI T, presented Ms. Curtis' tal king points.

The division of Legislative Audit conducted a sunset
review of the Special Education Services Agency also
known as SESA and issued our report |ast year. The
mai n objective of the audit was to determne if the
agency was operating in the public interest and
whether its term nation date shoul d be extended.

We conclude that SESA is serving a public need and is
essential in neeting the Federal law that requires the
State ensure that all children with disabilities have
available to them a free appropriate public education
that nmeets their unique needs. SESA serves over 200
students located in nostly non-urban |ocations through
its low incidence disabilities program

We recommend extending SESA's termination date until
June 30, 2021. However, our recommendation for
extension conmes Wwth recomendations to inprove
col | aborati on and oversi ght.

The biggest issue facing SESA is the flat funding of
its Low Incidence Disability program The funding
level is set in statute and hasn’t been increased in
14 vyears thereby decreasing the real value of its
budget by 36 percent. This has made it difficult to
hire qualified staff. SESA’ s uni que organizational
structure has left it with no nmechanism for seeking an
increase to its budget during the annual budgetary
process. SESA's funding as identified in the public
school funding statute provides an anmount per student
as the a “not less than” amount. Since SESA's funding
comes from the public school funding statutes, it is
funded through DEED. DEED could ask for increases as
part of its annual budget process but has chosen not
to do so since SESA reports to the Governor's Council
on Disabilities and Special Education which is
organi zationally located wthin the Department of
Heal th and Soci al Services. DEED managenent does not
consider their departnent’s responsible for nonitoring
t he adequacy of SESA s budget.

The Governor’s council did support legislation to

increase SESA's during the past session but the bill
was not successful .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



In recormmendation No. 1 of the report, we hold DEED
managenent accountable for nonitoring SESA because
DEED is responsible for fulfilling the federal |aw
regardi ng special education. Because DEED is the
entity t he ultimately nmust neet t he f eder al
requirenent, it should be taking a nore active role in
noni toring SESA. We recommend that DEED nmanagenent
and SESA nmanagenent collaborate to ensure SESA is
operating and funded as intended by the |egislature.

DEED s commi ssi oner does not agree with t he
recommendation. Historically the funding for SESA has
been a legislative process and he sees no need for a
change. DEED does not want to be held accountable for
SESA' s operati ons.

And we understand his viewpoint since the oversight
responsibility for SESA is fragnented and confusing.
VWhich brings ne to the Auditor’s Comrents section of

the report. In the Auditor’s Comments section of the
report, we discuss SESA's organizational structure
whi ch  has led to confusion as to oversight

responsi bility for funding and nonitoring SESA. SESA
is a nonprofit <corporation created by statute to
report to the Governor’'s Council on Disabilities and

Speci al Educati on. It nust report to the Governor’s
Council, however, the council does not have budgetary
authority over SESA. As a conponent of public schoo
funding, SESA's nmain program its Low Incidence

Disabilities program is funded through DEED

To further conplicate matters, as a nonprofit
corporation, SESA has its own bylaws and its own board
of directors.

The Auditor’s Conments Section of the audit explains
SESA's organi zational structure and highlights the
need for legislative clarification as to which entity
shoul d be hel d account abl e.

The audit contains a second recommendation addressed
to SESA's board president to revise board policies and
i nprove SESA board oversight. There has been a fairly
recent change in the executive director position and
the board president has already initiated changes to
hel p i nprove oversight.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



3:28:52 PM

Ms. Burnham detailed the auditor's comments. The comments
di scussed SESA's organizational structure, which led to
confusion regarding the oversight responsibility for
funding and nonitoring SESA. She added that SESA was a non-
profit corporation created by statute to report to the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education.
The council, however, did not have budgetary authority over
SESA. As a conponent of public school funding, SESA s nain
program was funded through Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED). As a non-profit corporation, SESA
had its own bylaws and board of directors. The auditor's
comment section of t he audi t expl ai ned SESA' s
organi zational structure and highlighted the need for
| egislative clarification as to which entity should be held
accountable. The audit contained a second reconmendation
addressed to SESA's board president to revise board
policies and inprove the SESA board oversight. She
nmentioned a recent <change in the executive director
position and the board president had initiated changes to
hel p i nprove oversight.

3:30:10 PM

Representative WIlson asked if the Comm ssioner of
education was present for questions.

Co-Chair Stoltze confirmed that a DEED representative was
present at the hearing.

Representative WIlson recalled nmuch discussion in the
subcomm ttee process regarding SESA and their idea
| ocation. She asked how the auditors would determ ne the
best placenment for SESA regarding program authority and
over si ght.

Ms. Curtis replied that the decision was policy driven. The
audit determned that the structure was working. The
hi ghl i ghted aspect of the audit addressed the flat funding
problem which conprom sed the program and led to a LB&A
report.

3:31: 24 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



CRAIG WARD, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), wurged the
committee to reauthorize the funding for SESA. He stated
that he was the parent of a child with trisony 18. He
explained the details of her disabilities. He offered
gratitude for a country that offered a free and appropriate
public education for all children. He noted that prior to
SESA' s involvenent his |ocal school in Ketchikan was unabl e
to determne how best to help his daughter because her
needs were beyond the scope of their training. He spoke to
the frustration about educating his daughter. He expl ained
that SESA offered optimsm new ideas and hope for his
daughter and famly. Because of SESA, the child now had an
educational plan for her future. He urged an increase in
SESA's funding to allow the sharing of information wth
nore districts throughout the state.

3:34: 37 PM

JEREM AH PI CKETT, SPECI AL EDUCATI ON  SERVI CES, BUCKLAND
(via teleconference), testified in support of SESA He
expl ained that he was from a rural village and was born
blind. He wurged the commttee to authorize funding for
SESA, which provided an integral part of his life and
education. He stated that the specialists at SESA taught
him how to acconplish nobility and navigation and he would
not be able to get around as well without the help.

3:36: 20 PM

GEORG A LANSI NG, DELTA/ GREELY SCHOOL DI STRI CT, DELTA
JUNCTION (via teleconference), testified in support of the
| egi sl ation. She explained that she was a special education
teacher with a nmaster's degree in learning disabilities.
She explained that her school district in Delta Junction
recently saw an increase in LID students. She noted that
she was overwhelned with the task of neeting the needs of
students with such a wide and varied range of |earning
difficulties including LID. She stated that she was
enpowered by the organi zation. She shared a story about a
student delivered to her classroom with needs greater than
her education had prepared her for. She benefitted fromthe
help from SESA, which enabled students with LID to becone
nore conpetent.

3:40:12 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



TAMW BOUTTE, SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES, SALANA (via
tel econference), testified that son was autistic and SESA
hel ped her son to begin communicating and therefore |earn
in the classroom She stated that SESA helped with travel
by teaching her famly how to react and behave in the
airport.

3:42: 45 PM

PATRICK PILLAI, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR,  SPECIAL EDUCATI ON
SERVI CE AGENCY, provided a brief PowerPoint presentation.
He began with slide 1: "Special Education Service Agency
( SESA) .

SESA provides consultation and training to support the
uni que educati onal needs of individuals and the
Al askan communities that serve them

M. Pillai discussed slide 2: "Background."

* Created in 1986; fornmed as a not-for-profit
Cor por ati on;

 CGoverned by the Alaska Governor's Council on
Disabilities and Special Education;
* Receive Low Incidence Disabilities f undi ng

t hrough DEED based on prior years statewi de tota
enrol | nrent;

M. Pillai explained that SESA was not included in Base
Student Allocation (BSA) calculations and had a |ack of
funding for the last 15 years. He stated that many people
were confused and thought that SESA was a part of BSA or a
school district.

M. Pill ai conrmented on slide 3: "Individuals wth
Di sabilities Education Act (1DEA 2004)."

The State is required to neet the mandate of | DEA 2004
to "ensure that all children with disabilities have
available to them a free appropriate public education
t hat enphasi zes special education and related services
designated to neet their unique needs."

The Legislature intended for SESA to help DEED fulfill

this requirement by assisting schools with providing
speci al education to children experiencing LID

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



M. Pillai discussed slide 4: "A S. 14.30.630(b) (1)
requires SESA to provide the follow ng special education
services."

A Itinerant outreach services to students who are deaf,
deaf-blind, nmentally retarded, hearing inpaired, blind
and visual ly i mpai r ed, ort hopedi cal | y di sabl ed,
heal t h-i npai r ed in ot her ways, and severely
enotionally disturbed, and to students with nultiple
di sabilities;

B. Special education instructional support and training
of local school district special education personnel
and

C. O her service appropriate to special education needs.

3:47: 24 PM

M. Pillai explained slide 5: A picture of a vision
specialist working with a child in rural Al aska.

M. Pillai discussed slide 6: "Total Nunmber of Students
Served." He stated that SESA served 270 students with LID.
He explained that the needs of the district determ ned the
nunber of specialists in the area. Mst schools had a
special education teacher, but the wuniqueness of the
disability sonmetimes required help from a SESA specialist.
He provided an exanple of a disability that led to severe
and nmultiple infractions of behavior.

3:48: 24 PM

M. Pillai described slide 7: "SESA Services."

* Itinerant service

* In-service training

» Al aska State Special Education Conference

» Courses designed and offered for university credit
« Alaska State Deaf Education Advisory Board

« Covernor's Counci | / Rur al Educati on/ Auti snf Early
I ntervention

* AARC/ BTKH DS

* Oher Non-profits - Stone Soup/Center for Human
Devel opnent /| LP

« Distance Educati on

3:49: 24 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



M. Pillai commented on slide 8: The screen shot of the
SESA website, which was recently redesigned and illustrated
links available to those students with LID and the staff
that work with them

M. Pillai discussed slide 9: The picture depicted a
specialist working with a child with LIDin rural Al aska.

M. Pillai described slide 10: "SESA FY 12 Student
Consultation by District.” The graph captured student
consultation in each one of the districts. He nentioned the
Bering Strait School District (BSSD), which used SESAs
services frequently. He added that SESA mght serve
anywhere from 39 to 45 school districts fromyear to year.

3:50: 44 PM

M. Pillai discussed slide 11: "Legislative Audit Report.”

Recommendat i on #1
Reiteration fromthe prior report that the Legislature
shoul d revi ew SESA fundi ng; and

"Over the past 14 vyears, school districts have
received increases in their funding formla, yet
SESA's funding fornmula has not increased. .the
hi storical process for evaluating and increasing SESA
fundi ng has been a | egislative process.."

M. Pillai added that SESA would be forced to reduce three
specialists in the next year if the organization did not
receive funding increases. He rem nded that the inflation
i ndex affected SESA by 36 percent over the l|last 15 years.
He added that the specialist hired by SESA were invested in
working with students with LID, so much that they slept on
the floor when travelling to rural Al aska. He conpared SESA
specialists' earnings wth those of teachers in the
Anchorage School D strict (ASD) and noted that at entry
| evel , SESA specialists earned $6000 - $9000 |ess annually
than the ASD teacher. The specialists were identified and
recruited for their expertise and SESA enpl oyed one teacher
with a PhD in autism from Boston University, which was
hel pful as autism had increased nore than 1000 percent in
Al aska. Well trained specialists were nore difficult to
recruit when they were paid so nuch less. He stated that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



the specialists also contributed 30 percent of their
earnings for nedical insurance preni uns.

3:52:27 PM

M. Pillai discussed slide 12: "This graph shows how LID
student count has increased while SESA s overall funding
has decreased due to decreased ADM" The graph depicted
SESA's actual funding conpared to funding if equivalent to
BSA conpared to Student Count. The red bars in the graph
depicted the amount of funding that would have conme to SESA
if it had been equival ent to BSA

Co-Chair Stoltze recommended that the discussion be held in
t he educati on subconm ttee process.

M. Studler stated that the will of the sponsor was to nove
the bill fromcomittee to extend the sunset date.
3:53:40 PM

Representative WIson argued the fact that SESA was funded
through DEED, wth oversight from DHSS. She opined that
wi t hout oversight, the funding should not be routed through
DEED. She was unsure about the proper solution, but
advocated for further investigation of SESA s placenent.
She stressed that she understood the value of SESA and
supported the program but wanted to detail the funding
organi zati on for budgetary reasons.

Co-Chair Stoltze expressed that the conversation was tardy,
as the operating budget had passed out of the House
al r eady.

3:55: 04 PM

Represent ati ve Kawasaki hoped that M. Pillai could address
t he LB&A audit.

M. Pillai stated that the process was funded by the
| egi slature and the Governor's Council determ ned that the
system was working and did not require change. He added
t hat DEED focused nore on conpliance, where SESA focused on
service. He added that the state adm nistrator of specia
education sat on the SESA board and attended every neeting
and received a full report of every board neeting along
wi th an annual report.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze requested further information.

Representative Kawasaki noted the audit's comments that
board neetings failed to have public notice and DEED staff
did not consistently attend neetings. He wondered if the
practices had changed with the release of the audit.

M. Pillai replied that all of the audit's concerns were
addressed and DEED was present at all board neetings for
the [ast 18 nonths.

3:57:32 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neunan pointed out various issues detailed in
the audit along with comentary from SESA. He understood
the recomendation that the |legislature review their
oversight responsibility. He opined that the program was
great and funding nust be used appropriately. He suggested
extending the date for a shorter period to allow for nore
frequent | egi slative review He wshed for further
conmi ttee discussion.

M. Pillai responded that SESA had clean fiscal audits. The
LB&A audit was also clean in terns of finances. The
previ ous executive director did enter into a contract with
her husband with board approval. He pointed out that the
arrangement did not lead to fiscal inplications.

3:59: 58 PM

Representative Edgnon stated that he worked with auditors
regularly outside of his legislative efforts. He supported
the program but listed the deficiencies cited in the
audit. He stated that he didn't understand that the
structure of the SESA program He pointed out that SESA
funding was not adequately evaluated by DEED for
operational needs and the operating plan did not conply
wWth state statutes. He stated that both findings were
material. He asked how to better structure the program He
asked for reconmendati ons from SESA's executive director.

M. Pillai replied that DEED did not take responsibility
for increasing revenue to SESA as the Governor's Council on
Disabilities and Special Education had oversight. The
departnment opined that |egislative appropriation was the
proper nethod of increasing funding. He stressed that SESA

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



remai ned in an awkward place where they were told that they
were a good agency and they would benefit from the funding,
but al ways conf usi on regar di ng t he | egi sl ative
appropriation versus funding from DEED. The audit pointed
to the area of confusion.

4:02:10 PM

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked about SESA's cl assification.

M. Pillai replied that SESA was a political subdivision of
t he state.

Representati ve Edgnon asked if the bylaws and budgets were
governed by the Governor's Council on Disabilities or by
DEED

M. Pillai replied that a mnimm of five and maxi mum of
seven nenbers from the Governor's Council on Disabilities
were required to serve on the board. The state director of
speci al education had a mandatory position on the board as
wel | .

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that he planned to review the
| egislation further in the commttee in further neetings.

4:04: 05 PM

MARI LYN ROSENE, PRINCIPAL OF DILLI NGHAM ELEMENTARY (via
tel econference), explained that SESA's staff worked well
wi th her school. She stated that her district was unable to
serve the children with LID without SESA s hel p. She noted
that her district enployed SESA resources over the last six
years from behavior specialists, which helped transition
students from elenentary to mddle school. She added that
SESA's help allowed students to remain in the community.
She spoke to SESA's specialist's quality training.

4:06:41 PM

PJ FORD SLACK, PRINCIPAL, SITKA H GH SCHOOL AND CHAIR,
SESA, explained that when she began her position as board
chair, she soon found that an inappropriate contract was
initiated by the former director of SESA in 2011. She noted
that the director was renmoved and M. Pillai was hired. She
menti oned working with the School Board Association to
assure that all of the current SESA board nenbers were

House Fi nance Committee 12 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



trained in correct public and board policy. She nentioned
that in 2012, Joseph Reeves reviewed the board s policy and
the board received training regarding audit reports. She
prom sed that the board would follow proper procedure under
her | ead.

Representative Minoz asked about the "intensive-funding"
rate. She wondered if the district shared a portion of the
"intensive-fundi ng" wth SESA.

Ms. Slack replied that the district was not allowed to
share the funds because SESA was not allowed to establish
fees as a non-profit organization. She added that students
identified with LID were not necessarily "intensive-funded"
st udent s.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that passage of HIR 1 m ght
enabl e the sharing of funds.

Representati ve Munoz asked about the difference between the
"intensive-funding” rate and the special education funding
rate in the BSA

Ms. Slack replied that she would do her best. She stated
that "intensive-funding” was specific to Alaska and
appropriated by the legislature. She explained that
"intensive-funded" students nust neet at |east five or six
criteria and LID students had rare and infrequent
disabilities that required very specific help. She
mentioned a student with LID funding who did not have arns.
She noted that he was not an "intensive-funded" student.

4:11: 13 PM

Representative Minoz asked for a rough estimate of
"i nt ensi ve-fundi ng" ver sus regul ar speci al educati on
fundi ng rates.

Ms. Slack replied that the director of finance for DEED
coul d better answer the question.

4:12: 07 PM

M LLI E RYAN, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, REACH, stated that she
served as an ex officio nenber of SESA in her prior
position as executive director of the Alaska Governor’s
Counci | on Disabilities and Special Educat i on. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



addressed the question about SESA's location in the

council. Upon creation of SESA, the council served as a
speci al education advisory panel and SESA was a special
education program The council, located in DHSS becane

designated as a special education advisory panel because
the legislature, at the time, did not want to establish
anot her board with a narrow purpose. Because the council
had the simlar purpose, it was chosen. The counci
received regular reports on SESA during neetings and the
education commttee received the sane conmunication. She
admtted that the situation was awkward, but she understood
that SESA was located in DEED because SESA provided an
educati on servi ce.

Representative Wl son asked if SESA m ght receive oversight
from DEED al one.

Ms. Ryan stated that the situation was awkward because the
council | ooked for funding changes for SESA and nade
recomendations regarding the Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority, which represented people wth devel opnental
disabilities. She added that the council provided an
advocacy role that the state board of education m ght not
address as thoroughly.

4:15:49 PM

Representative Kawasaki asked about the timng. He
understood that some SESA enpl oyees had contracts that were
set to expire.

Ms. Ryan agreed that an assurance was necessary for the
t eachers.

4:16:40 PM

ESTHER BENNET, ADAK (via teleconference), explained that
her son had benefitted greatly from SESA s involvenent in
his education. She nentioned that she served on the schoo

board and was aware that the agency had not had a funding
increase in 15 years. She stated that her son waited for
SESA's services and she wondered if the wait resulted from
the lack of funding increases. She suggested that comittee
menbers get to know SESA specialists. She explained that
travel around Al aska was unpredictable and wondered if that
m ght explain board nenber absences. She expressed

House Fi nance Committee 14 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



gratitude that her son had access to the services from
SESA.

4:19:31 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony.

HB 87 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

4:20: 02 PM
AT EASE

4:21:27 PM
RECONVENED

#hb50
HOUSE BI LL NO. 50

"An  Act authorizing the Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation to allow certain comercial uses in a
multi-unit residential housing developnment owned or
financed by the corporation and limting the Al coholic
Beverage Control Board's issuance of certain |icenses
to premises in the residential housing devel opnent.™

4:21:42 PM

Representative Costello MOWED to ADOPT the proposed
commttee substitute for HB 50, Wdrk Draft, 28-LS0155/C,
Strasbaugh, 3/14/13 (FIN). Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for
di scussi on.

DANI EL  GEORGE, STAFF, CO CHAIR STOLTZE, expl ained the
changes in the CS. He noted the change on the final page,
which renoved the wording between lines 9 and 17, "the
corporation may not authorize the commercial use of space
in a multi-unit residential housing devel opment owned or
financed by the corporation for the manufacture, sale,
transfer or storage of cigarettes or tobacco products”
replaced with "the <corporation nay not authorize the
commercial use of space in a nmulti-unit residential housing
devel opnent owned or financed by the corporation for a
business that primarily sells, transfers, or stores
cigarettes or tobacco rel ated products.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



There being NO FURTHER OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered,
Versi on C was ADOPTED.

4:23:15 PM

Representative Costello explained that the bill allowed the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) to authorize the
conbi nation of comercial wuse and nulti-unit residential
housi ng devel opnents owned or financed by the corporation.
She pointed out three sections of the bill. Under the
authorizations allowed to the corporations, "the addition
of the ability for AHFC to authorize certain comrercial
uses in a multi-unit residential housing devel opnment owned
or financed by the corporation.™

Representative Costell o added that the final section of the
bi |l excluded certain types of busi nesses such as
charitable gam ng, adult entertainnment, the sale of
al coholic Dbeverages, unless the sale occurs wth a
restaurant |icensed under the alcohol beverage control
board as a restaurant. The first section of the bill was
new and allowed the ABC board to approve a request for a
new |ocation if AHFC approved a business in one of the
mul ti-unit housing areas. She explained that the purpose of
the bill was to allow nore flexibility for nmulti-unit
housing in Alaska. She nentioned other communities that
utilized conmmercial use space in buildings, which allowed
residents to benefit from the commercial properties and
allowed AHFC greater flexibility when pursuing nore
af f ordabl e housi ng for Al askans.

4:25:10 PM

STACY SHUBER, DI RECTOR, GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS AND PUBLIC
RELATI ONS, explained that AHFC was involved in nortgages,
bonds, financing, public housing and energy progranms. The
nortgage and investnent aspect of the business supported
the diversity of work at AHFC. She explained that the bil
would help nmeet the need for nore housing across
comunities and hel ping the corporation to strengthen their
position financially.

Ms. Shuber explained that AHFC s famly |loan program
performed well and remained an inportant tool for
construction of new, safe, quality and affordable nulti-
uni t housi ng. She stated that AHFC supported the
| egi slation and urged the commttee's support.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



4:26: 03 PM

Representative WIson asked about the exclusions and
whet her they were tied to federal grants.

Representative Costello replied that the exclusions were
not mandated by the relationship between the federal
government and AHFC. The exclusions were included in the
| egislation to pronote famly-friendly living environnents.

4:26:49 PM

Representative WIlson asked if other conmunities were using
the nodel. She w shed to better wunderstand the famly-
friendly portion of the |egislation.

Representative Costello replied that AHFC coul d best speak
to comunity nodels. She added that there was a trend
across the country to incorporate comrercial and housing
opportunities. She was unsure about exact statistics
regardi ng these types of housing opportunities.

Representative WIlson stated that she supported the
commercial portion of the legislation, but wanted to renmain
flexible with the |anguage.

4:27:48 PM

Representative Kawasaki agreed that the proposed housing
trends were infectious in the Lower 48. He asked if simlar
units were overseen in Al aska by AHFC.

Ms. Shuber referred to the Inlet Tower Hotel, which was
included in AHFC s portfolio. She noted that a property in
the Mountain View subdivision in Anchorage resulted from a
partnership between AHFC and Cook Inlet Housing and
included retail shops on the bottom of the building and
housi ng units on the top.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if AHFC nmust fill a void in
t he area because of the need for housing.

Ms. Shuber replied that AHFC saw the opportunity to address
housi ng issues in Kodiak, Anchorage, None and Barrow. She
highlighted that the comercial space nade the housing
options nore affordable across all incone |evels.

House Fi nance Committee 17 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze asked if Muwuntain View would have simlar
options w thout AHFC and Cook I nl et Housi ng.

Ms. Shuber replied that she did not know the answer to the
guesti on.

4:30: 01 PM

Representative Edgnon asked about the charitable gam ng
element of the bill and the potential restrictions inplied.
He pointed out that rural Al askan comunities wutilized
gamng for fundraising purposes, and senior housing

facilities enployed simlar routines.

4:30: 29 PM

Ms. Shuber replied that AHFC did not have a position on the
gam ng and profitability aspect of HB 50. She supposed t hat
gamng mght affect the profitability of a business in
certain circunstances, but AHFC did not speculate w thout a
proposed project to detail.

Representative Costello responded that the bill provided a
tremendous opportunity for businesses. The intent of the
exclusion was to provide for a famly-friendly environnent
inthe facility.

Representati ve Edgnon did not know if the restriction m ght
provi de an uni ntended inpedinent in rural Al aska.

4:31:57 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the restriction mght prevent a
senior center fromhosting a bingo event.

Ms. Shuber referred the question to an AHFC underwiter.

ERI C HAVELOCK, MJULTI-FAM LY UNDERWRI TI NG SUPERVI SOR, AHFC
(via teleconference), comented that venues for charitable
gamng were sonetinmes Jlocated near the corporation's
housing projects but typically not within the facility. He
stated that a senior center would have bingo night and
pull -tab operations. He stated that AHFC did not have a
position on the gam ng operations.

Co-Chair Stoltze understood the corporation's neutrality.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



M. Havel ock stated that he had w tnessed gamng utilized
in other projects outside of the residential housing.

4:33:15 PM

Representati ve Munoz asked about devel opnents that were tax
exenpt under city or nunicipal code. She assuned that the
owner would be liable for the property tax due to the
commercial portion of the property. She wondered how the
division of property assessnent was addressed by the
cor porati on.

Ms. Shuber requested M. Havel ock's opinion.

M. Havelock stated that the local tax authority would
determ ne the taxing structure for the business and housing
unit. A nunicipality could offer a tax exenption for rea
property taxes. The taxation of the commercial space would
be determ ned by each municipality.

4:34:31 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze understood that bingo and other events
constituted common fundraising opportunities. He suggested
a conceptual anmendnent to strike the charitable gam ng
| anguage fromthe bill.

Representative Gara offered a conceptual anendnent:

Del ete "charitable gam ng under AS 05.15," page 6,
line 11.

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered. The conceptua
anmendnent was adopt ed.

4:36:29 PM

Representative Costello highlighted one zero fiscal note
from Department of Revenue (DOR).

4:37:16 PM

Representative Costello MOVED to REPORT CSHB 50 (FIN) out
of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



CSHB 50 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass” recomendati on and with one previously published zero

fiscal note: FN1 (REV).

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:38 p.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/14/13 3:21 P. M



